
 SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Standards Committee 

on Tuesday, 19 April 2016, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

John Clough 

John Holmes 

Janette Jenkinson 

Eric Morrell (Vice-Chairman) 

Matt Severn (Chairman) 

Ian Stewart 

Phil Walker  

 

Parish Members 
 

David Peters   

 

 
 
Friday, 8 April 2016 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Paul Rogers 

Telephone: 01539 793497 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 22 September 2015 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 
or other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as 
well as any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration 
of interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she 
is advised to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance 
of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  APPOINTMENT OF SECOND PARISH REPRESENTATIVE   

 For Members information, at its last meeting, the Committee agreed to 
invite South Lakeland District Association of Local Councils (SLDALC) to 
put forward a nominee for the remaining Parish co-optee vacancy. 
Following the invitation, Councillor Peter Smillie (Arndale Parish Council) 
has been put forward by SLDALC to become a co-optee and the 
Committee is requested to consider his nomination.  

 

6  CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  9 - 12 

 To consider a report with regards to complaints under the Council’s 
Standards Arrangements from September 2015. 

 

7  COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS 
RECEIVED DURING 2015/2016  

13 - 22 

 To receive an update on the number of complaints and compliments 
received to date during 2015/2016. 

 



8  REVIEW OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME  23 - 28 

 To consider a report regarding dispensation for Members with a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest to utilise the General Public Participation 
Scheme and to recommend changes to Full Council. 

 

9  PLANNING CODE OF CONDUCT  29 - 44 

 To consider the Planning Code of Conduct for recommendation to Full 
Council. 

 

10  STANDARDS ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16  45 - 54 

 To consider the draft Annual report for 2015-16.  

11  INDEPENDENT PERSON APPOINTMENT  55 - 58 

 To consider a report regarding the Independent Person appointment.  

12  STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  59 - 60 

 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 
 

There are no items in this part of the Agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
22.09.2015 Standards Committee 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Standards Committee held in the 
Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 22 September 2015, at 3.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 

 
Matt Severn (Chairman) 

Eric Morrell (Vice-Chairman) 
 

John Clough 
 

John Holmes   
 

Parish Members 

   
David Peters 

 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from District Councillors Janette Jenkinson, 
Ian Stewart and Phil Walker. 
 

Officers 
 

Simon McVey Assistant Director Policy and Performance 

Paul Rogers Assistant Democratic Services Officer 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

 
S/1 MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 21 April 2015. 
 

S/2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations were made. 
 

S/3 TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
RESOLVED – That the Terms of Reference of the Standards Committee, as set out 
in Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution, be noted. 
 

S/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no items in Part II of the Agenda. 
 

S/5 STANDARDS COMMITTEE PARISH CO-OPTEES - UPDATE  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) reminded Members that 
at the last meeting, the Committee had agreed to invite the Chairman of South 

Page 5

Item No.2



2 
22.09.2015 Standards Committee 
 

Lakeland District Association of Local Councils (SLDALC) to apply to become a co-
optee Member of the Committee. At its meeting held on 17 September 2015, 
SLDALC had re-elected David Peters of Natland Parish Council as its Chairman for 
the next 12 months period and, subsequently, he had accepted the invitation. 
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) informed Members that 
no nominations had been received from Parish Councils for the other co-optee 
vacancy. 
 
It was suggested that SLDALC be invited to put forward a nominee for the 
remaining vacancy. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) David Peters be appointed as a co-optee Member of the Committee until 
September 2019 or for as long as he holds the position of Chairman of the South 
Lakeland District Association of Local Councils if shorter; and 
 
(2) South Lakeland District Association of Local Councils be invited to put 
forward a nominee for the remaining Parish co-optee vacancy. 
 

S/6 REGISTER OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER INTERESTS  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented a report which 
reviewed the Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Registrable Interests for 
District Council Members and Co-optees for the period to September 2015. It was 
emphasised that all Members had completed their forms. 
 
There was a suggestion, more so in connection with the Parish Report, that 
question 4 on the form relating to Land was not sufficiently clear. The Director of 
Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) informed the Committee that she would 
ensure that the completion of the question was monitored. 
 
RESOLVED – That the review and the report be noted. 
 

S/7 PARISH REGISTERS  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented a report which 
reviewed the Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Registrable Interests for 
Parish Councillors for the period to September 2015. Members were asked to 
consider the review. There were three forms where queries had been raised and 
these forms were in the process of being returned. 
 
With regard to a question raised about completed forms being posted on Parish 
Council websites, the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
informed the Committee that it was the responsibility of the Parish Councils to post 
the forms on their website if they had one. She suggested that South Lakeland 
District Association of Local Councils be asked to include a reminder to Parish 
Councils in their newsletter about completed forms being posted on their websites.  
 

Page 6



3 
22.09.2015 Standards Committee 
 

A Member suggested that Parish Councils could insert a link on their own website 
to the page on the District Council’s website where the completed forms could be 
viewed. The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) took the view 
that this would be acceptable. She would consult with the Cumbria Monitoring 
Officers for their views on the suggestion with a view to achieving a consistent 
approach on the matter. 
 
Reference was made to the time being taken by Members to return completed 
forms. It was suggested that a maximum period of time should be given by which 
time completed forms should be returned.  
 
RESOLVED – That the following procedure be put in place for the completion of 
Parish Council Members’ Declaration of Interest forms to the Council:- 
 
(1) if forms are not returned within the 28 days, a reminder be given on expiry of 
that deadline to Members if the form has not been returned to highlight the fact that 
the statutory period has passed; and 
 
(2) notwithstanding that failure to complete a register form is a criminal offence, 
no direct action would be taken by the Committee until the expiration of a further 28 
days following which a final reminder would be sent and followed up by the 
Chairman of the Committee. 
 

S/8 EMPLOYEE REGISTER OF INTERESTS AND GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented a report 
requesting the Committee to review the Register of Interests and Gifts and 
Hospitality for Employees for the period September 2014 to September 2015. An 
update of formal declarations made during that period was provided to the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the review and the report be noted. 
 

S/9 GUIDANCE ON GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented a report which 
requested the Committee to approve for circulation a revised Guidance on Gifts and 
Hospitality for Members and Co-opted Members of the Authority. 
 
RESOLVED – That the revised Guidance on Gifts and Hospitality for Members and 
Co-opted Members attached as Appendix 1 to the report, be approved. 
 

S/10 CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented a report which 
informed the Committee of complaints received under the Council’s Standards 
Arrangements since 1 April 2015.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

Page 7



4 
22.09.2015 Standards Committee 
 

S/11 COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 
FROM APRIL 2015 TO AUGUST 2015  
 
The Assistant Director Policy and Performance presented a report which gave an 
update to Members on the number of complaints and compliments received to date 
during 2015/2016. He emphasised that the number of complaints had reduced 
compared to the previous year and the total number of compliments had also 
reduced. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

S/12 LOCAL OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW 2014/15  
 
The Assistant Director Policy and Performance presented the annual report of the 
Local Government Ombudsman for 2014-15.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

S/13 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented the Standards 
Committee Work Programme for June 2015 onwards. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 4.00 p.m. 

Page 8



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

19 April 2016 

Code of Conduct Complaints  

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Matthew Severn, Chair of Standards 
Committee 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Debbie Storr 

WARDS: not applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 That the Committee notes the report of the Monitoring Officer with regards to 
complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangements from September 
2015.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Members are asked to note the report. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Under the Council’s Standards Arrangements the Monitoring Officer reviews 
any complaint received about District or Parish/Town Councillors in respect of 
the Members’ code of conduct and, after consultation with the Independent 
Person, takes a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation. 

3.2 Members were last updated in September 2015. At the date of writing this 
report there have been no new complaints received against individual 
members.  

3.3 Members are asked to note the report. 

 4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Not applicable – the report is to note. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 There are no alternative options, the report is to note.  

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Good governance underpins the Council’s achievements of its Council Plan 
priorities and objectives.  

Page 9

Item No.6



 

 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 There are no additional financial resource implications.  

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 Not applicable. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 The Council is required to ensure it accords with the requirements of the 
Localism Act 2011.   

7.3.2 The Council has adopted Standards arrangements within which any 
complaints against Members are considered.  There are no issues to raise in 
this report.   

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Not applicable.  

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 There are no equality issues to raise.  

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That the Council fails to 
comply with the 
requirements of the 
Localism Act 2011 

Challenge to the 
Council’s governance 
arrangements 

Ensure appropriate 
arrangements are in 
place to ensure 
compliance with the 
legislation. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

 NONE 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

    n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 19.4.16 n/a  author 

Page 10



 

 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

Use these 
boxes for 
additional 
tracking 

Use these 
boxes for 
additional 
tracking 

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

19 April 2016 

Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and 
Complaints received during 2015/2016 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Jonathan Brook – Innovation and Improvement 
Portfolio Holder  

REPORT FROM: Simon McVey – Assistant Director Policy and 
Performance 

REPORT AUTHOR: Caroline Metcalfe – Contact Centre Manager 

WARDS: All 

KEY DECISION NO: not applicable 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 Feedback is very important to help us better understand our customers' needs 
and concerns and can also bring light areas of service improvement. This 
report presents an update to Members on the number of complaints and 
compliments received during 2015/2016. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the report be received.  

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 In our drive to improve our customer service, complaints data has been 
monitored for a number of years. All complaints and compliments are 
recorded and managed by the Customer Services Team. 

3.2 Previous reports on this subject have shown relatively small changes in the 
number of complaints being received each year. This trend has continued as 
during 2015/2016 the number of complaints has reduced slightly. This is 
shown in the data attached at Appendix 1. 

3.3 During 2015/16 there have been 118 stage 1 complaints received compared 
to 124 in the previous financial year. The reasons for complaints are wide and 
varied and there is no underlying trend. However compared to the annual 
number of customer interactions this is a very small percentage.  

3.4 This report is showing that the average time taken to respond to a complaint 
is 7 working days (previous years have been 5, 7, 12 and 15 working days) 
and 95 of the 118 complaints (80.5%) were answered within the 10 working 
day target. This is being achieved by the proactive monitoring of complaints 
and the willingness of departments to respond in a timely manner. However it 
should be noted that in some cases it is not possible to resolve the complaint 
within the 10 day target, especially if a more detailed investigation, or in some 
cases a site visit, is required. 

Page 13

Item No.7



3.5 The number of Stage 3 complaints progressing to the Chief Executive has 
reduced to 8 compared to 12 in the previous year. The majority of these have 
been in relation to planning matters.  

3.6 Appendix 2 shows a more detailed breakdown of the stage 1 complaints by 
department and also by complaint category. This data is useful to identify 
trends and assist with service improvements. The highest number of 
complaints continues to be in relation to council policies. Neighbourhood 
Services received the highest number of complaints which is indicative of the 
large number of public interactions but the department also receives the 
highest number of compliments. 

3.7 There have been 30 compliments which are shown in Appendix 3 and this 
compares to 38 in the previous financial year. It should be noted that more 
compliments are now received by social media, particularly after the response 
to flooding and it is expected that in future these can be captured as part of 
the Customer Connect Programme. 

3.8 To put these figures in context it is estimated that over the same period there 
have been in excess of 3.2 million customer interactions. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 None.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 There are no alternative options – the report is to note. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Links to the Council’s priorities in relation to customer satisfaction. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Not applicable. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 Not applicable. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Not applicable. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Data from the reports will help inform service improvements 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Not carried out for this report but an Equalities Impact Assessment was 
completed for the complaints policy and customer access strategy. 

  

Page 14



7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Reputational as a result 
of complaints 

Reputation of the 
council is diminished 

Regular review of 
complaints policy and 
proactive monitoring of 
complaints.  

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – c.metcalfe@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Complaints Data  1 April 2015 – 31 March 2016 

2 Complaints Data  1 April 2015 – 31 March 2016 

3 Compliments Data  1 April 2015 – 31 March 2016 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Previous reports to Standards Committee 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

07/04/2016 07/04/2016 07/04/2016 09/04/2016 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Standards 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 19/04/2016 n/a 07/04/2016 07/04/2016 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

Use these 
boxes for 
additional 
tracking 

Use these 
boxes for 
additional 
tracking 

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Appendix 1

2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015
Month           

2015/2016
Total

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 10 

Working Days

9 9 9 9 13 April 8 4 0 100.0%

7 30 12 7 10 May 3 5 1 66.7%

7 16 12 9 14 June 7 21 4 42.9%

23 55 33 25 37 Quarter 1 18 11 5 72.2%

15 10 10 11 15 July 10 9 4 60.0%

10 13 10 7 9 August 16 8 4 75.0%

7 21 8 14 14 September 18 8 3 83.3%

32 44 28 32 38 Quarter 2 44 8 11 75.0%

16 16 4 12 9 October 15 5 1 93.3%

10 13 8 13 9 November 9 5 1 88.9%

9 9 2 6 7 December 13 8 2 84.6%

35 38 14 31 25 Quarter 3 37 6 4 89.2%

26 4 5 9 7 January 5 6 1 80.0%

14 11 10 14 15 February 9 5 2 77.8%

13 15 5 7 2 March 5 4 0 100.0%

53 30 20 30 24 Quarter 4 19 5 3 84.2%

143 167 95 118 124 Annual 118 7 23 80.5%

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015
Quarter           

2015/2016
No

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 10 

Working Days

6 5 4 Quarter 1 6 5 0 100.0%

5 3 3 Quarter 2 2 9 0 100.0%

3 1 2 Quarter 3 6 14 2 66.7%

1 4 1 Quarter 4 2 13 1 50.0%

15 13 10 Annual 16 10 3 81.3%

2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015
Quarter           

2015/2016
No

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 15 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 15 

Working Days

5 10 6 0 4 Quarter 1 3 14 1 66.7%

5 4 5 3 3 Quarter 2 0 n/a n/a n/a

6 6 2 0 4 Quarter 3 3 15 1 66.7%

4 6 1 2 1 Quarter 4 2 12 0 100.0%

20 26 14 5 12 Annual 8 14 2 75.0%

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Month

Stage 2 - Escalation to Assistant Director / Director by Quarter

Stage 3 - Escalation to Chief Executive by Quarter

NO COMPARABLE 

DATA

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Appendix 2

Assistant Director No

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 

10 Working 

Days

Neighbourhood 

Services
86 7 13 84.9%

Policy and 

Performance
2 6 0 100.0%

Resources 6 5 0 100.0%

Strategy and 

Planning
24 9 10 58.3%

Annual 118 7 23 80.5%

Total
Neighbourhood 

Services

Policy and 

Performance
Resources

Strategy and 

Planning

27 11 1 5 10

7 2 0 1 4

58 51 1 0 6

12 10 0 0 2

0 0 0 0 0

2 2 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

12 10 0 0 2

118 86 2 6 24

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Assistant Director

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Category

Complaint  Category

Complaint about any of the Council policies

Decision making and implementation 

Service standards or quality issues

Staff behaviour (e.g. rude, unhelpful)

Customer Access

Work undertaken by our contractors 

Failure to fulfil statutory obligations 

Failure to carry out a service.

Discrimination or bias

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Appendix 3

Compliments

Street Scene Thank you to refuse crew that collected from Beast Banks Kendal

Coronation Hall Thank you to staff at Coronation Hall

Contact Centre Professional handling of the complaint

Neighbourhood Services Thank you for very quick and prompt response

Coronation Hall Thank you to staff at Coronation Hall

Contact Centre Call was dealt with very promptly

Kendal Town Hall Thank you to Kendal town hall staff following an event

Street Scene Compliment to the driver of the little sweeper

Contact Centre Thank you to contact centre staff

Street Scene Thank you to refuse collectors

Neighbourhood Services Like to thank the council for leaving the grass to grow

Management Team Thankyou to Debbie Storr

Contact Centre / Street Scene Thank you to all involved for resolving a recycling issue

Contact Centre Thanks to Jodie Smith for sorting out a waste problem

Town Hall Thanks to Town Hall staff from Comic Art Festival organisers

Community and Leisure Thanks to Jim Maguire for his reply to an earlier letter

Street Scene Thanks for assisted waste collection and Serpentine Road

Contact Centre Thanks to Rebecca Wilson and Pauleen Breeze for being helpful and professional

Contact Centre Thanks to Craig Wilson for helping resolve a problem

Emergency Planning Caring for flood victims at reception centre

Emergency Planning Thanks to Town Hall staff for looking after stranded coach visitors

Emergency Planning Thanks to Town Hall staff for looking after stranded car occupants

Emergency Planning Complimenting Staff for hard work during flooding

Street Scene Compliment to refuse crews in Kirkby Lonsdale 

Contact Centre Thanks to Jodie Smith for sorting out a waste problem

Street Scene Thanks for removing weeds in North Lonsdale Road

Street Scene Compliment to refuse crews in Stramongate

Street Scene Thanks to Andy Vickers for sorting out refuse collections in Grange over Sands

Street Scene Fly tipping collected within days at Burneside

Street Scene Thanks to crew who collected an unusually heavy bin 

Total 30

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



South Lakeland District Council 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

19 APRIL 2016 

REVIEW OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
PARTICIPATION SCHEME  

 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Matthew Neal, Solicitor to the Council 

WARDS: All wards  

KEY DECISION: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 That a dispensation is approved for Members with a Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest to utilise the General Public Participation Scheme. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the dispensation, with a period of 2 years, as set out in paragraph 
3.3 of this report be approved. 

2.2 That the changes to the General Public Participation Scheme as set out 
in Appendix 1 to this report be recommended for approval to full 
Council. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Prior to the introduction of the Localism Act 2011 there was provision for 
Members who had what under the Code of Conduct at that time what was 
referred to as a “prejudicial interest” to utilise the Public Participation Scheme. 
No such provision has been made in public speaking arrangements under the 
Members’ Code of Conduct that has been in force since the Localism Act 
2011 came into force. 

3.2 Currently a member who has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an agenda 
item is advised to leave the chamber and not use the General Public 
Participation Scheme. 

3.3  Standards Committee are asked to approve the following dispensation. The 
suggested period of 2 years will enable the effect of the dispensation to be 
assessed. A 2 year dispensation is also being suggested for similar proposals 
in relation to the Public Participation scheme applicable to Planning 
Committee with an associated bi-annual review. 

Page 23

Item No.8



 

Councillor /Co-optee Dispensation 
Date 
granted 

Period 

All current Members of 
South Lakeland District 
Council and Co-optees on 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Lake 
Administration Committee 

In circumstances when a member has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in relation to 
an agenda item, to make representations 
under the  General Public Participation 
Scheme.  Such dispensation does not apply 
to the reminder of the agenda item and upon 
completing his/her address the member will 
be required to leave the chamber for the 
remainder of the agenda item. 

16 April 
2016 

2 
years 

3.4 Current guidance to Members is that if their private interests or involvement as 
a ward councillor leads them to the conclusion that they are caught by the 
rules of bias and pre-determination then they should not use the General 
Public Participation Scheme. If Members are content to grant the dispensation 
as above then it should follow that members caught by the rules of bias and 
pre-determination should be able to use the General Public Participation 
Scheme in the same way as Members who have a Disclosable Pecuniary 
interest in an agenda item.  

3.5 It is therefore recommended that a provision be set out in the General Public 
Participation Scheme indicating that a Member who would have to otherwise 
leave the chamber due to bias and pre-determination may utilise the relevant 
scheme before doing so. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Not applicable, albeit the proposals in this report have been influenced by the 
process of formulating the Planning Code of Conduct, referred to separately 
on this agenda. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 Not approve the dispensation. This is not recommended as the proposals 
within this report would enable Members who currently would be excluded 
from the public participation process, to make representations.  

5.2 Not agree the suggested amendments to the General Public Participation 
Scheme. This is not recommended as the proposals within this report would 
enable Members who currently would be excluded from the public 
participation process, to make representations under the scheme. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The proposals in this report are relevant to the following Council values:- 

Excellence  

Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that our actions 
address the needs of South Lakeland; and  

Page 24



Open and Transparent  

Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 The recommendations in this report do not have any financial implications. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 The recommendations in this report do not have any staffing implications. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 The Localism Act 2011 sets out criteria which can be applied in considering 
dispensations and the following are relevant to this case:- 

(1) That it is considered that the granting of the dispensation is in the 
interests of the persons living in the authority’s area; or 

(2) That it is considered that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation. 

7.3.2 There is no legal requirement to have a General Public Publication scheme. It 
is considered desirable however to have similar treatment of Members with 
bias and pre-determination as compared to members with a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest in terms of eligibility for the public participation  scheme. 

 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

This proposal has no significant 
social, economic or environmental 
impacts. 

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1  

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

The recommendations in this report 
do not in themselves have any 
significant implications for Equality 
and Diversity and therefore no 
Equality and Diversity Impact 
Assessment is considered necessary. 

 
 

Page 25



7.6 Risk 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That the 
current 
restrictions on 
the General 
Public 
Participation 
Scheme is 
perceived as 
being unduly 
restrictive  

Members and their 
constituents are 
aggrieved at the 
restrictions on 
Members’ ability to 
utilise the General 
Public Participation 
Scheme 

1. Implementation of the proposals set out 
within this report.  

 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS 

Matthew Neal, Solicitor to the Council – Tel: 01539 793305.  

Email:- m.neal@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix 
No. 

 

1 Draft Amended General Public Participation Scheme 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Not applicable 
 
TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

*** N/A  Report author *** N/A 

Standards 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

Leader  

*** N/A *** *** 29 March 2016 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 
 

   

N/a N/a    

 

Page 26

mailto:m.neal@southlakeland.gov.uk


GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME 
 
(a) As part of its commitment to community governance and openness, South Lakeland District 
Council welcomes and encourages attendance and contributions by the public at its meetings. This is 
known as public participation. Information on when the Council, its Committees and the Cabinet 
meets can be found on the Council's website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Democratic Services Group. 
 
(b) Some meetings, e.g. Planning Committee, Licensing and Licensing Regulatory-Sub-
Committees and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee have separate procedures for public 
speaking.  The General Public Participation Scheme applies to the following meetings – 
 
 (i) Council (except the Annual Council meeting); 
 (ii) Cabinet; 
 (iii) Lake Administration Committee; 
 (iv) Licensing Regulatory Committee; and 
 (v) Licensing Act Committee 
 
(c) Where there is no specific agenda item for public participation, any requests to speak are at 
the discretion of the Chairman. 
 
(d) In addition, any part of a meeting where it has been decided that the press and public should 
be excluded means that public participation cannot be included in the business. 
 
(e) Members of the public can make representations, put a question or present a petition to a 
meeting. (Petitioners should read the Council’s Petition Scheme.) However, it should be noted that 
public participants are not subject to the privilege rule and, therefore, individuals who take part should 
have regard to the laws governing defamation, libel and slander. 
 
(f) Public Participation is open to the following people: 
 

• a resident and/or elector of South Lakeland District; 
• a representative of a South Lakeland District based group or organisation; 
• a representative of a town or parish council within South Lakeland District; 
• a business ratepayer of South Lakeland District; or 
• anyone else, subject to the discretion of the Chairman. 

 
(g) Representations must relate to those issues which are the responsibility of the meeting to 
which they are to be made. For advice on this please contact the Democratic Services Group. 
 
(h) Representations are not permitted where the issue relates to the circumstances of an 
individual, matters covered by legal or other proceedings or about a member of staff. 
 
(i) A period of 30 minutes is allotted at the start of each meeting to hear representations, but this 
can be extended at the discretion of the Chairman. 
 
(j) Anyone wishing to make representations should contact the Democratic Services Group 
before the start of the meeting. Generally, Speakers will be taken in the order that their requests to 
speak have been received with priority being given to requests in writing. 
 
(k) Requests should include name, address and contact telephone number and indicate if a 
question, petition or representation is being made. 
 
(l) The Council's Monitoring Officer reserves the right to omit or refuse a request which includes 
any matter which appears to be defamatory, frivolous, offensive or for any other legitimate reason. In 
these cases, where time permits, the person concerned will be informed in writing of the reason for 
omission or refusal. 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 27

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


(m) The Chairman has discretion to vary the time limits for speaking but generally, speakers are 
allowed up to three minutes to put their case – although if they have submitted written authority to 
speak on behalf of a number of individuals, this can be extended to up to five minutes. This does not 
apply where the other individual is one of the following: 
 

• a family member 
• a partner 
• a business associate 
• a member of the same organisation 

 
(n) Responses to representations are at the discretion of the Chairman and may (but not 
necessarily) take one of the following forms: 
 

• the Chairman or officers may answer any questions raised;  
• the issue may be discussed by Members under an agenda item; 
• the meeting can resolve that the matter should be referred to the appropriate Committee; or 
• the Chairman may decide that a written response is more appropriate. In this case, a written 

response will be given within 7 working days of the meeting. 
 
(o) A person who has spoken at one of the Council's meetings (e.g. Council, Cabinet, a 
committee or sub-committee meeting), may not speak for a period of six months on the same matter, 
or a related issue, at any subsequent meetings of the Council, Cabinet, committee or sub-committee, 
without the consent of the Chairman. 
 
(p) Any disruptive behaviour may result in the Chairman adjourning the meeting and/or the 
individual concerned being asked to leave. 
 
(q) The use of Social Media, filming, videoing, photographing or recording of Council meetings or 
other meetings which are open to the public is allowed, subject to the conditions of the Protocol 
governing the use of mobile phones, social media, filming and recording at meetings attached to the 
public participation guidelines in the Constitution. 
 
(r) The use of social media in formal meetings is permitted for members of the public, press and 
Councillors, so long as this does not cause any disruption or disturbance. The Chairman’s decision on 
this point is final. 
 
(s) To minimise disruption to others attending the meeting, all attendees including Councillors 
must ensure that their phone or other mobile devices are switched off or set to silent mode during the 
meeting. 
 
(t) A Member or Co-Opted Member who due to private or ward activities has to declare bias and 
pre-determination in relation to an agenda item may utilise the General Public Participation Scheme 
and speak on such an agenda item subject to the requirement that upon completing his/her address 
the member will be required to leave the chamber for the remainder of the agenda. 

Page 28



South Lakeland District Council 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

19 April 2016 

PLANNING CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable  

REPORT FROM: 
 

REPORT 
AUTHOR: 

Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Matthew Neal, Solicitor to the Council 

WARDS: All wards save those that are wholly within a 
National Park 

KEY DECISION: Not applicable 

 
1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 That Members agree to recommend to Full Council that the Planning Code of 
Conduct as set out in the report is adopted, thereby complying with best 
practice. This will assist the Council in making robust planning decisions and 
reduce the risk of successful legal challenge in the courts or before the Local 
Government Ombudsman. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Standards Committee approve a dispensation for all members and 
co-optees as set out in paragraph 3.7 of this report for a period of 2 
years 

2.2 That Full Council be recommended to approve the draft Planning Code 
of Conduct as set out in Appendix 1 of this report. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 A recommendation from the Third Report of the Committee on Public Life 
(chapter 6) is that Local Planning Authorities should review their procedures 
and set them out in an accessible code. The Local Government Association 
have also emphasised this in their guide ‘Probity in Planning for councillors 
and officers’. 

3.2  One of the key purposes of the planning system is to manage development in 
the public interest. Development Management affects land and property 
interest and the financial value of landholdings, the quality of their settings. It 
is important that the Council should make decisions about planning openly, 
impartially, with sound judgment and for justifiable reasons. The process 

Page 29

Item No.9



should leave no grounds for suggesting, with any justification, that a decision 
has been partial, biased or ill founded. 

3.3 The document attached to this report as Appendix 1 is a suggested South 
Lakeland District Council Planning Code of Conduct (“Planning Code of 
Conduct”). Members are asked to give consideration to this document. If 
approved the code should be subject to further bi-annual review by Planning 
Committee and Standards Committee with any consequent changes to be 
recommended to full Council. 

3.4 Provisions are set out in paragraph 3.4 and 6.8 of the draft Planning Code of 
Conduct which if approved would enable a member who has:   

(a) due to ward activities or otherwise may have had to declare bias and pre-
determination; or  

(b) a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest;  

to be able to register under the Public Participation Scheme, speak on an 
agenda item but then leave the chamber during the remainder of the 
discussion thereon. 

3.5 It is a criminal offence for a member to fail to appropriately register a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (“DPI”) or to speak and vote where they have a 
DPI unless they have obtained a dispensation. The Council’s constitution also 
requires that if a Member has a DPI in any matter to be considered, or being 
considered, at the meeting, then the Member should declare that interest to 
the meeting and should leave the room whilst any discussion or vote takes 
place. 

 
3.6 If a dispensation has been granted to a Member in relation to a DPI then 

subject to the terms of the dispensation the Member may be relieved from the 
above restrictions but will still be required to declare the interest to the 
meeting. 

3.7 Standards Committee are asked to approve the following dispensation. The 
suggested period of 2 years will enable the effect of the dispensation to be 
assessed as part of the bi-annual review referred to in paragraph 3.3 of this 
report.  

Councillor /Co-optee Dispensation 
Date 
granted 

Period 

All current Members of 
South Lakeland District 
Council and Co-optees on 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Lake 
Administration Committee 

In circumstances when a member has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in relation to 
an agenda item, to make representations 
under the Public Participation scheme 
applicable to Planning Committee. Such 
dispensation does not apply to the remainder 
of the agenda item and upon completing 
his/her address the member will be required 
to leave the chamber for the remainder of the 
agenda item. 

16 April 
2016 

2 
years 

Page 30



 

3.8 The provisions set out in paragraphs 3.4 and 6.8 of the draft Planning Code of 
Conduct will, if approved, enable members with an interest in an application 
either through a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or by virtue of potential bias 
and pre determination, to utilise the public participation scheme during an 
agenda item and then leave the chamber. The draft Planning Code of 
Conduct if approved should ensure best practice for members of Planning 
Committee and for other members who wish to make use of that Committee’s 
Public Participation Scheme, thereby improving the operation of the 
Committee and its decision making. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The Deputy Leader and Environment and People Portfolio Holder has been 
consulted on an earlier draft of this code and her comments have been taken 
into account. The Economic Growth, Town Centres and Small Businesses 
Portfolio Holder and the Chairman and Vice Chairman of Planning Committee 
have also been consulted on the current version of this code. 

4.2 A draft of the code was also taken to Planning Committee on 26 February 
2015. Planning Committee resolved as follows: 

“That consideration of the draft Planning Code of Conduct be deferred for 
 consideration to the July 2015 Planning Committee meeting, to enable a 
 representative of each political group to provide the Solicitor to the Council 
with comments on the Code of Conduct prior to finalisation of the report for 
the meeting.” 

 
4.3 The purpose of the deferral to July 2015 was to enable the process of 

consulting group representatives from Planning Committee to take place in 
the new Municipal Year before finalising the report to the Planning Committee 
meeting of July 2015.   

 
4.4 On 21 April 2015 Standards Committee resolved as follows: 

 “That the Planning Code of Conduct be approved in principle for 
recommendation to Council, subject to any recommendations put forward by 
the Planning Committee.” 

 
4.5 A Peer Review was conducted by the Planning Advisory Services (PAS) in 

Autumn 2015 and this made a number of recommendations some of which 
related to the public participation scheme and had an impact on the emerging 
Planning Code of Conduct. For this reason, in consultation with the Chairman 
of Planning Committee, work was delayed on the Planning Code of Conduct 
to enable the any findings of PAS to be considered and if appropriate 
incorporated into the Code.  

 
4.6  One of PAS’ recommendations was as follows 
 “Amend the Planning Protocol appropriately to clarify the role of the Local 

Member within the planning Process –in order to enable Local Members to 
more appropriately represent their local areas in respect to these important 
planning decisions.” 

Page 31



 
4.7 Members of Planning Committee considered the above recommendation at 

an informal meeting on 21 January 2016 and supported a suggestion that the 
Public Participation scheme be amended to enable members with an interest 
in an application either through Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or by virtue of 
bias and pre determination, to utilise the public participation scheme during an 
agenda item and then leave the chamber. 

4.8 On 23 March 2016 Planning Committee resolved as follows: 

(1) Standards Committee be recommended to approve a dispensation for 
all Members and Co-optees as set out in paragraph 3.7 of the Report; 
and 

 
(2) subject to the word ‘should’ being replaced by the word ‘can’ in 

paragraph 14.1, and subject to any further comments of Standards 
Committee, Full Council be recommended  to approve the draft 
Planning Code of Conduct as set out in Appendix 1 of the Report. 

 
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 Not to have a Planning Code of Conduct. This is not recommended as it 
would not be in accordance with the recommendations of the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life or the Local Government Association. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The proposals in this report are relevant to the following Council values; 

Excellence  

Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that our actions 
address the needs of South Lakeland; and  

Open and Transparent  

Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 The recommendations in this report do not have any financial implications. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 The recommendations in this report do not have any staffing implications. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Whilst the adoption of a Planning Code is not a statutory requirement, the 
recommendations in this report should assist the Council in establishing best 
practice and minimising: 

(i) the risk of legal challenge to its planning decisions; 

(ii) the risk of an adverse finding from the Local Government Ombudsman; 

(iii) the number of the council’s decisions which are overturned on appeal; 
and 

Page 32



(iv) the risk of a costs award being made against the Council by a Planning 
Inspector in respect of planning decisions. 

7.3.2 The Localism Act 2011 sets out criteria which can be applied in considering 
dispensations and the following are relevant to this case:- 

(1) That it is considered that the granting of the dispensation is in the 
interests of the persons living in the authority’s area; or 

(2) That it is considered that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation. 

7.3.3 Dispensations cannot be given for Members are affected by bias and pre-
determination. The proposals set out in this report if approved will mean that 
there is similar treatment for such members in circumstances in which they 
wish to use the Public Participation scheme applicable to Planning 
Committee. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 This report does not have any registered significant environmental effects. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 The recommendations in this report do not in themselves have any significant 
implications for Equality and Diversity and therefore no Equality and Diversity 
Impact Assessment is considered necessary. 

 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Failure of 
Members and 
Officers  to 
comply with a 
Planning Code 
of Conduct 

1. Potential legal 
challenge to 
planning decisions 

1. 1.Regular training 
 

2. Potential finding of 
maladministration 
by the Local 
Government 
Ombudsman. 

2. Members, officers and the public can 
make a complaint to the Monitoring 
Officer in the event that any failure to 
comply with the Planning Code of 
Conduct results in a breach of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS 

Matthew Neal, Solicitor to the Council – Tel: 01539 793305. E mail 
m.neal@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Draft South Lakeland District Council Planning Code of 
Conduct 

Page 33

mailto:m.neal@southlakeland.gov.uk


 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available  

14th report of the Committee on 
Standards of Public Life 

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20131002
005939/http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/17-
january-2013/ 

Local Government 
Association-Probity in Planning 
for Councillors and Officers 

http://www.pas.gov.uk/documents/332612/6482760/
Probity+guide+for+cllrs+revised/25ed9243-0850-
49fa-8e1a-4eb3935084a2  

 
 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holders 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

3/03/16 3/03/16  Report author  N/a 

Standards 
Committee 

Planning 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 
(Corporate 
Director) 

19 April 2016 24/03/16 18/05/16 3/03/16 3/03/16 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 
 

   

N/a N/a    

 

Page 34

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20131002005939/http:/www.public-standards.gov.uk/17-january-2013/
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20131002005939/http:/www.public-standards.gov.uk/17-january-2013/
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20131002005939/http:/www.public-standards.gov.uk/17-january-2013/
http://www.pas.gov.uk/documents/332612/6482760/Probity+guide+for+cllrs+revised/25ed9243-0850-49fa-8e1a-4eb3935084a2
http://www.pas.gov.uk/documents/332612/6482760/Probity+guide+for+cllrs+revised/25ed9243-0850-49fa-8e1a-4eb3935084a2
http://www.pas.gov.uk/documents/332612/6482760/Probity+guide+for+cllrs+revised/25ed9243-0850-49fa-8e1a-4eb3935084a2


 

APPENDIX 1 

 

1 

CODE OF PRACTICE FOR MEMBERS AND OFFICERS DEALING WITH PLANNING MATTERS- 
-VERSION FOR STANDARDS COMMITTEE 19 APRIL 2016 

This Code of Practice supplements the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members and where 
appropriate Members should refer to the Code of Conduct which is set out in the Council’s 
Constitution. The advice of the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) or the Solicitor to 
the Council may be sought on the interpretation of the Code of Conduct or this Code. 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Planning affects land and property interests, including the financial value of land and the 
quality of their settings. It is not an exact science. It is often highly contentious because 
decisions affect the daily lives of everyone and the private interests of members of the 
public, landowners and developers. Opposing views are often strongly held by those 
involved. A key role of the planning process is balancing the needs and interests of 
individuals and the community. 

1.2 The planning system can only function effectively if there is trust among those involved. 
There must be trust between Members and Officers and between the public and the 
Council. The Committee on Standards in Public Life recommends that each local 
authority’s practices and procedures should be set out in a local code of planning conduct 
to avoid allegations of malpractice in the operation of the planning system. That 
Committee has also set out principles which are to govern the conduct of Members and 
Officers of Councils as follows. 

Selflessness 
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest 

Integrity 
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not 
act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, 
their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationship 

Objectivity 
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using 
the best evidence and without discrimination or bias 

Accountability 
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and 
must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this 

Openness 
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. 
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful 
reasons for so doing 

Honesty 
Holders of public office should be truthful 

Leadership  
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should 
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor 
behaviour wherever it occur 

1.3 The Council is committed to open, fair and transparent decision-making.  Planning 
decisions should be made impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons. 

Page 35



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

2 

1.4 This Code of Practice sets out practices and procedures that Members, whether or not 
they are on Planning Committee, and Officers of the Council shall follow when involved in 
planning matters. Planning matters include the consideration of planning applications, the 
preparation of development plans and other planning policy and the enforcement of 
planning control. 

1.5 Failure to follow this Code without good reason, could be taken into account in 
investigations into possible maladministration against the Council, or have implications for 
the position of individual Members and Officers. Breaches of this Code may also amount to 
breaches of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members. If in doubt about what course of 
action to take, a Member or Officer should seek the advice of the Director of Policy and 
Resources (Monitoring Officer) or the Solicitor to the Council. 

1.6 This Code of Practice sets out principles to guide Members and Officers in determining 
planning applications and making other decisions within the terms of reference of the 
Planning Committee. Although of particular relevance to members of the Planning 
Committee it applies to all members of the Council who may become involved in planning 
and development matters. 

2. THE ROLE AND CONDUCT OF MEMBERS AND OFFICERS 

2.1 Members and Officers have different, but complementary roles. Both serve the public but 
Members are responsible to the electorate, while Officers are responsible to the Council as 
a whole. The role of a member of the Planning Committee is to make planning decisions 
openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons. 

2.2 Whilst all Members have a special duty to their ward constituents, including those who did 
not vote for them, their overriding duty is to the whole community. This is particularly 
pertinent to Planning Committee Members. A key role of the planning system is the 
consideration of development proposals against the wider public interest. 

2.3 Members’ decisions shall not discriminate in favour of any individuals or groups and, 
although they may be influenced by the opinions of others, they alone have the 
responsibility to decide what view to take. Members must, therefore, consider all of the 
material issues in the light of Development Plan policies, Government advice and their own 
individual judgement and make a decision in the interests of the area as a whole. 

2.4 Whilst Members should take account of all views expressed, they shall not favour any 
person, company, group or locality, nor put themselves in a position where they appear to 
do so. 

2.5 Officers who are Chartered Town Planners are guided by the Royal Town Planning 
Institute’s (RTPI) Code of Professional Conduct. Breaches of that code may be subject to 
disciplinary action by the Institute. 

2.6 Officers in their role of advising Members shall provide: 

2.6.1 Impartial and professional advice; 

2.6.2 Consistency of interpretation of planning policy; and 

2.6.3 Complete written reports covering all necessary information for a decision to be 
made. 

2.7 The Council endorses the statement in the Royal Town Planning Institute (“RTPI”) code 
that, ‘RTPI members shall not make or subscribe to any statements or reports which are 

Page 36



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

3 

contrary to their own professional opinions’, and extends it to apply to all Officers in the 
authority advising on planning matters. 

2.8 That the Council may not always follow the advice of their Planning Officers is perfectly 
proper. The Planning Officer too, may have a change of opinion, but this must be on the 
basis of professional judgement, and not because the Council, its Members or other 
Officers, have prevailed upon the Planning Officer to put forward his or her professional 
view as something other than it really is.  

2.9 The Council’s Development Management Group Manager is a member of the RTPI and 
has direct access to elected members as their professional adviser on planning matters. 
Under the RTPI’s Code of Conduct he shall not put his name to any reports which are 
contrary to his own bona fide professional opinion. 

2.10 Officers shall follow the guidance on their standards of conduct as set out in the Employee 
Code of Conduct in the Council’s Constitution.  

2.11 Members should treat with extreme caution any offer of gifts and hospitality which is made 
to them personally. The normal presumption should be that such offers must be 
courteously declined. Any gifts of hospitality of a value of £50 or more which are offered, 
whether or not accepted, must be declared in the Members’ Register of Interests Form as 
“Other Registrable Interests.”  

2.12 Similarly, Officers shall politely decline offers of hospitality from people with an interest in a 
planning proposal. If receipt of hospitality is unavoidable, Officers must ensure it is of a 
minimal level and forward to the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) a 
completed Record of Gifts and Hospitability Received. If hospitality is declined Officers 
must submit a Declined by Employees Declaration Form as set out in the Code of Conduct 
of South Lakeland District Council Employees to the Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) as soon as possible. 

3. INTERESTS OF MEMBERS AND OFFICERS  

3.1 As a minimum, the integrity of the planning system requires openness on the part of 
Members. The planning system must operate fairly and be seen to operate fairly. Where 
Members have interests which may be thought likely to influence their decision, the fact 
should be declared at the meeting. Where the interest is such that members of the public 
may feel that the member will not be able to approach matters with an open mind and 
consider the application on its planning merits, Members should consider withdrawing 
from the Committee for that item. 

3.2 These principles apply equally to members who are not members of Planning Committee. 
Members who have such interests should consider whether it is appropriate for them to 
participate in the planning process, and in any event, should declare such interest at any 
meeting which they may attend or in any letter which they may write. Members should seek 
guidance from Officers. 

3.3 The Code of Conduct for Members provides guidance as to Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests and Other Registrable Interests which may affect a member’s ability to take part 
in the decision-making process.  However, Members may have other interests which may 
influence their decision which will not amount to interests for the purposes of the Code.  In 
order to maintain the integrity of the planning system, members should be careful to 
ensure that such interests do not unduly influence their decisions.  Examples of such 
interests are:- 

3.3.1 from ward concerns; 

Page 37



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

4 

3.3.2 from membership of other Committees of the Council; 

3.3.3 from membership of Cumbria County Council; 

3.3.4 from membership of the Lake District National Pak Authority of the Yorkshire 
Dales National Park Authority; 

3.3.5 from membership of Parish or Town Councils; 

3.3.6 from membership of other public or community bodies; 

3.3.7 from membership of voluntary associations and trusts (including where appointed 
by the Council); 

3.3.8 from a connection with a particular policy initiative of the Council; 

3.3.9 from membership of clubs, societies and groups; and 

3.3.10 from hobbies and other leisure interests. 

3.4 Such interests may mean that a Member of Planning Committee is involved with a 
planning application before the matter comes before the Planning Committee.  Such 
involvement need not on its own debar a Member of Planning Committee from 
participating in making the planning decision when the matter is considered by Planning 
Committee providing that the Member has not already decided how they will vote on the 
matter before the Committee.  Members of Planning Committee should, however, always 
consider carefully whether in any particular case they could reasonably be seen to 
approach the planning merits of the application with an open mind.  If the Member 
considers that this is not possible, he/she should withdraw from the chamber during 
consideration of that item, This is subject to proviso that if he/she has registered to speak 
he/she may use the public participation scheme to address the Planning Committee on 
the agenda item prior to withdrawing from the chamber  

3.5  Officers who are advising Planning Committee should make an appropriate declaration in 
the event that their own private interests create an actual or perceived conflict of interest. 
If such conflict of interest arises an officer with such interest should not advise Planning 
Committee and leave the room whilst Members are discussing and voting on an agenda 
item that relates to such private interest. Further guidance in this regard is set out in the 
Code of Conduct of South Lakeland District Council Employees. 

4. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSED BY THE COUNCIL OR SOUTH LAKES HOUSING 

4.1 Planning legislation allows the Council to submit and determine proposals for development 
that it proposes to carry out itself.  The Council has the right to nominate councillors onto 
the board of directors of South Lakes Housing. South Lakes Housing from time to time 
submits proposals that are decided by the Council.  

4.2 Proposals submitted by the Council or South Lakes Housing shall be considered in the 
same way as those by private developers. If South Lakes Housing submits a planning 
proposal which is then considered by Planning Committee, any Members of the Planning 
Committee who are on the Board of South Lakes Housing shall declare such interest and 
take no part in the discussion and determination of that proposal. Such Members must 
leave the chamber during the discussion of the matter. 

4.3 Officers who are involved in the preparation of development proposals shall not advise on, 
or take any part in the consideration of, planning applications in respect of such proposals. 

Page 38



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

5 

5. STATUTORY DUTIES 

5.1 The Council is also subject to a number of statutory duties which it must comply with when 
carrying out its statutory functions.  These will apply to the planning function except when 
such matters are clearly immaterial because they are not capable of relating to the use of 
development land.  Examples of these duties include: 

5.1.1 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 provides that: 

A council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:- 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
which is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it. 

5.1.2 The above powers relate to the following protected characteristics:- 

(a) Age; 

(b) Disability; 

(c) Gender reassignment; 

(d) Marriage and civil partnership; 

(e) Pregnancy and maternity; 

(f) Race (including colour, nationality and ethnic or national origins); 

(g) Religion or belief; 

(h) Sex; or 

(i) Sexual orientation. 

 5.1.3   Section 6(1) of the Human Rights Act 1998 provides that: 

“It is unlawful for a public authority to act [or fail to act] in a way which is 
incompatible with a Convention right.” 

5.1.4 Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 provides that: 

“A best value authority must make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.” 

5.1.5 Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 provides that: 

“Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of a 
local authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect 
of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can 
to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.” 

6. LOBBYING OF AND BY MEMBERS 

6.1 Lobbying is a normal and proper part of the political process. The applicant, supporters or 
those who may be affected by a proposal will often seek to influence the decision by an 
approach to their local member or members of a Planning Committee. However, reacting 
to lobbying can lead to the impartiality of a Member being called into question and require 
that Member to declare an interest.  

Page 39



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

6 

6.2 The information provided by lobbyists is likely to represent an incomplete picture of the 
relevant considerations in respect of a planning matter. The views of consultees, 
neighbours and the assessment of the case by the Planning Officer all need to be 
considered before a Member is in a position to make a balanced judgement on the merits 
of the case. Members should provide Officers with copies of any lobbying material they 

may have received, whether in favour or against a proposal upon which they may rely on 
making a decision. 

6.3 The time for individual Members of the Planning Committee to make a decision on a 
proposal is at the Planning Committee meeting when all available information is to hand 
and has been duly considered. 

6.4 A Planning Committee member shall be free to listen to a point of view about a planning 
proposal and to provide procedural advice (in particular referring the person to Officers). 
Even though they may agree with a particular view, Planning Committee members should 
take care about expressing an opinion indicating they have made up their mind before the 
decision-making meeting. To do so, without all the relevant information and views, would 
be unfair and prejudicial. A decision is at risk of being challenged if Members do not retain 
open minds and are not genuinely susceptible to persuasion at the decision-making 
meeting. Members who are lobbied should: 

6.4.1 make clear that they reserve their final decision on a proposal until the committee 
meeting: 

6.4.2 only give procedural advice; 

6.4.3 consider referring those lobbying to the relevant Officer who can provide further 
advice; and 

6.4.4 not seek to meet an applicant or potential applicant alone. 

6.5 Members of the Planning Committee shall not organise support or opposition for a 
proposal or lobby other Members. Members shall not put improper pressure on Officers for 
a particular recommendation. 

6.6 Subject to paragraph 6.7 below, the local ward Member who is not a member of the 
Planning Committee will be allowed to attend and speak at the decision-making meeting if 
he/she has registered to speak under the Public Participation Scheme (in accordance with 
the prescribed deadlines) but not vote.  

6.7 A local Member (whether or not he/she is a Member of Planning Committee) who has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an application, within the meaning of the Members’ Code 
of Conduct should not attend the relevant agenda item of the meeting of the particular 
Planning Committee unless he/she has been granted a dispensation. 

6.8 It should be noted that all Members and Co-Opted Members have been given a general 
dispensation by Standards Committee to remain in the chamber to make representations 
under the Council's Planning public participation scheme. Such dispensation does not 
apply to the reminder of the agenda item and upon completing his/her address the 
member will be required to leave the chamber for the remainder of the agenda item. 
(Subject to Standards Committee approval in April 2016). 

6.9 Members of a Planning Committee must be free to vote as they consider appropriate on 
planning matters. A Member cannot be instructed how to exercise their vote on a planning 
matter. 

Page 40



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

7 

6.10 Members should inform the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) where 
they feel they have been exposed to undue or excessive lobbying or approaches 
(including inappropriate offers of gifts or hospitality), who will in turn provide appropriate 
advice. 

7. PRE- AND POST- APPLICATION DISCUSSIONS AND NEGOTIATIONS 

7.1 Discussions between an applicant and the Council, prior to the submission of an 
application can be of considerable benefit to both parties and is encouraged. Continued 
discussions and negotiations between these parties, after the submission of proposals, is 
a common and important part of the planning process. However, they should take place 
within clear guidelines, as follows. 

7.2 It should always be made clear at the outset that the discussions will not bind the Council 
to making a particular decision and that any views expressed are those of the Officer only, 
and are provisional. 

7.3 Advice should be consistent and based upon the Development Plan and any other 
material considerations. There should be no significant difference of interpretation of 
planning policies by individual planning officers. 

7.4 A written note or audio recording should be made of all potentially contentious meetings, or 
from the point at which it becomes obvious that a meeting has become contentious. Two or 
more Officers should attend potentially contentious meetings. Where only one Officer is 
present and it becomes apparent that the meeting is becoming contentious it should be 
re-arranged to enable another one or more Officers is able to attend. A note should also be 
taken of potentially contentious telephone discussions. 

7.5 Members need to preserve their role as impartial decision makers and should not take part 
in pre or post submission discussions and negotiations with applicants regarding 
development proposals. Should there be occasions when Members are involved, it should 
be part of a structured arrangement with Officers, including a senior Planning Officer. 
Members must avoid indicating the likely decision on an application or otherwise 
committing the authority during contact with applicants or at any time prior to the decision 
being made. 

7.6 Members may receive information from applicants and give information to applicants and 
members of the public but, to safeguard their impartiality, they should maintain a clear 
distinction between receiving information and negotiating. Any significant information 
containing which may be relevant to the planning merits received by Members should be 
provided to the Officers dealing with the application. Members who are approached for 
planning, procedural or technical advice should refer the applicant to the relevant Officer. 

8. OFFICER REPORTS TO COMMITTEE 

8.1 Planning Officers will submit written reports to the Planning Committee on planning 
applications to be determined by the Council. The reports will give the background to the 
application including any relevant planning history of the site, a description of the 
proposals and their likely effects, and the relevant Development Plan and Government 
policy considerations, together with any other material considerations. Where a planning 
application requires an environmental impact assessment the Planning Officer shall 
include in his/her report a summary of the environmental statement, comments by bodies 
consulted and representations from members of the public together with his/her own 
comments. The reports will include a summary of representations made about the 

Page 41



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

8 

application. The Planning Officer in his/her report will give a reasoned assessment of the 
proposals and a justified recommendation. 

8.2 Members are expected to have read all of the reports on the agenda for a Planning 
Committee meeting in advance of the meeting. Officers will summarise the contents of the 
reports and highlight any updates which have arisen since the agenda was published. Any 
such updates will be minuted. 

8.3 The Planning Officer will have available for inspection by members the full planning 
application, environmental statement (where required) and representations from bodies 
consulted and members of the public. 

9. PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

9.1 Planning decisions should be made on the basis of planning considerations and should not 
be based on immaterial considerations. It is the responsibility of Officers in preparing 
reports and recommendations to Members to highlight the material planning 
considerations and identify those matters which are not material planning considerations. 

9.2 The risk of costs being awarded against the Council on appeal is not itself a material 
planning consideration. Personal considerations and, save as referred to below, purely 
financial considerations are not on their own material. They can only be material in 
exceptional situations and only in so far as they relate to the use and development of land, 
such as the need to raise income to preserve a listed building which cannot otherwise be 
achieved.  

9.3 The planning system does not exist to protect private interests of one person against the 
activities of another or the commercial interests of one business against the activities of 
another. The basic question is not whether owners and occupiers of neighbouring 
properties or trade competitors would experience financial or other loss from a particular 
development. The correct question is whether the proposal would unacceptably affect 
amenities and the existing use of land and buildings which ought to be protected in the 
public interest. 

9.4 Local opposition or support for a proposal is not in itself a ground for refusing or granting 
planning permission, unless that opposition or support is founded upon valid planning 
reasons which can be substantiated. 

9.5 Planning legislation, as expanded by Government Guidance and decided cases, defines 
which matters are material considerations for the determination of planning decisions. 
There is much case law on what are material planning considerations. The consideration 
must relate to the use and development of land. Material planning considerations include:- 

9.5.1 the Development Plan; 

9.5.2 Government Guidance (contained in such documents as Planning Practice 
Guidance, National Planning Policy Framework, Mineral Policy Guidance Notes,  
and Ministerial announcements); 

9.5.3 Supplementary Planning Documents adopted by the Council; 

9.5.4 non-statutory planning policies adopted by the Council; 

9.5.5 the statutory duty to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas; 

Page 42



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

9 

9.5.6 the statutory duty to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving a listed 
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest 
which it possesses; 

9.5.7 representations made by statutory consultees and other persons making 
representations in response to the  publicity given to applications, to the extent 
that they relate to planning matters; 

9.5.8 planning obligations (given unilaterally or by way of agreement) under section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990;  

9.5.9 the Council Plan; 

9.5.10 Community Infrastructure Levy Payments which would be due from the 
developer; 

9.5.11 New Homes Bonus which would arise from the development.  

9.6 It will be inevitable that all the considerations will not point clearly to whether to grant or 
refuse. Having identified all the material planning considerations and put to one side all the 
immaterial considerations, members must come to a carefully balanced decision which 
can be substantiated, if challenged on appeal. 

10. THE DECISION MAKING PROCESS 

10.1 Where the Development Plan is relevant, decisions should be taken in accordance with it, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Where an environmental impact 
assessment is required, the Planning Committee shall take the information provided in the 
report into consideration when determining the application. If the report's recommendation 
is contrary to the provisions of the Development Plan, the material considerations which 
justify this must be clearly stated. 

 
10.2 Where the Planning Committee decide to adopt the recommendation of the Planning 

Officer that will be reflected in the minute, together with any additional reasons determined 
by the Committee.  

10.3 If the Planning Committee is minded to refuse or grant an application contrary to Officer 
recommendation, it should consider whether to defer the application to the next available 
committee, before making the final decision. This will allow Members to obtain further 
advice on the proposed reasons for acting contrary to the recommendation based on 
material planning considerations. If such a decision is made it must be clearly minuted, 
expressed clearly and be based upon sound planning reasons supported by evidence. 

10.4 The reasons for the Committee’s decision to defer any proposal should also be recorded. 

11. SITE VISITS BY THE COMMITTEE 

11.1 A site visit may be held if the Planning Committee considers it will assist members in 
reaching their decision.  This would be, for example, where the impact of the proposed 
development is difficult to visualise from plans and supporting material.  

11.2 The role of the applicant during a site visit shall only be to secure access to the site in 
accordance with health and safety provisions. The applicant shall not participate in any 
discussions on site but may be asked to provide factual information. Objectors and 
supporters will not be invited to attend a site visit or participate in any discussions on site. 

11.3 On assembling at the site, at the time specified, the Chairman will explain the purpose and 
procedures of the site visit so that all are aware that it is a fact finding exercise only and 

Page 43



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

10 

that no decision will be taken until the committee meeting. The Planning Officer, will 
explain the application as it relates to the site and relevant viewpoints. Following any 
questions to the Planning Officer, or clarification sought on matters which are relevant to 
the site inspection, the Chairman will bring the site visit to a close. 

11.4 When a site visit is held prior to the meeting of the Planning Committee it is desirable that 
all Members attending the Planning Committee should have attended the site visit. 
Members voting on a planning application without having attended the visit to the particular 
site may give the impression that they have not taken the opportunity to be fully informed 
about the application. Information gained from the site visit should be reported back to 
Committee so that all members have the same information.  

11.5 Planning Committee Members should not enter a site which is subject to a proposal other 
than as part of an official site visit, even in response to an invitation, as this may give the 
impression of bias unless they feel it is essential to visit the site other than through 
attending the official site visit. Any such Member should firstly have spoken to the Planning 
Officer about their intention to do so (and a note of this discussion should be placed on the 
planning file). If such visit takes place the Member should explain the circumstances 
relating to the visit at the discussion of the application at the Planning Committee.  

12. PUBLIC REPRESENTATIONS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

12.1 Wherever possible, objections or representations to planning applications should be made 
in writing. Written representations received will be made available for public inspection and 
objections summarised and reported to the Planning Committee.  Members will be given 
the opportunity to inspect all letters received before the decision on the application is 
made. 

12.2 The Council has a Scheme for Public Participation at Planning Committee and this is set 
out in the Council’s Constitution.  

13. REVIEW OF DECISIONS 

13.1 The Local Government Association recommend that Members should visit a sample of 
implemented planning permissions to assess the quality of decisions. This can improve 
the quality and consistency of decision-making and help with reviews of planning policy. 

13.2 Visits to application sites previously considered by the Council shall be organised in 
tandem with visits to current application sites, as appropriate. Briefing notes shall be 
prepared in each case. Attendance at the review site visits shall be restricted to Members 
of the Planning Committee and the local Ward Member(s). 

14. TRAINING 

14.1 Mandatory training for members of Planning Committee is held for all Members new to the 
Committee, and also as refresher training for existing Committee members, on an annual 
basis. Members can not participate in decision-making at meetings dealing with planning 
matters if they have not attended the mandatory planning training prescribed by the 
Council. 

14.2 Other topical planning sessions are organised from time to time. Members should 
endeavour to attend such sessions, particularly if these are designed to extend Members’ 
knowledge of planning law, procedures, Codes of Practice and the Development Plan and 
thus assist Members in carrying out their role properly and effectively.  

Page 44



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

19 April 2016 

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Matt Severn (Chairman of Standards 
Committee) 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) 

WARDS: All 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 That the Committee consider the draft Annual Report for 2015/16. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee consider its draft Annual Report 
2015/16 for referral to full Council. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Annual Report, attached at appendix 1, details the work of the Committee 
and the operation of the Council’s Standards Arrangements over the last 12 
months.   

3.2 Members are requested to consider the Annual Report 2015/16 for referral to 
Council.   

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Not applicable – the Committee is requested to consider the report and 
provide comments as it feels appropriate. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The report is to consider and comment.   

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Ethical standards underpin the governance controls of the Council. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Ethical standards underpin the governance controls of the Council. 

Page 45

Item No.10



 

 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 Not applicable. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Any changes to Standards arrangements must be in accordance with the 
relevant legislative requirements. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 There are no issues to raise  

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 There are no issues to raise. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That the Council is 
failing in its standards 
arrangements  

Poor standards of 
behaviour  

Monitor and review 
arrangements on a 
regular basis    

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Standards Annual Report 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

 N/A   N/A 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

N/A  AGM  author 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

N/A     

 

Page 46



May 2016 
Annual Report [Draft]  

1 

 
 

Page 47



May 2016 
Annual Report [Draft]  

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



May 2016 
Annual Report [Draft]  

3 

FOREWORD FROM THE CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 
The function of The Standards Committee is to:- 

(i) Promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Councillors and co-opted 

members. 

(ii) Assist Councillors and co-opted members to observe the Code of Conduct; and 

(iii) Monitor the operation of the Code of Conduct. 

This civic year was my first as Chair of this Committee and it has been a real pleasure to 

serve as its Chair. 

This year has also been a quiet one for the Committee and the Code of Conduct continues 

to be upheld across our district. The Committee has held no hearings or tribunals. 

The Committee has reviewed the Disclosable Pecuniary Interest forms received successfully 

by all District & Parish Councillors. 

The Committee has reviewed the Complaints received by the various Council departments 

over the year and has questioned the Monitoring Officers over their resolutions. 

I would like to thank everyone for their endeavour to uphold these standards and a special 

thanks to the Councillors, co-opted members and staff who serve on the Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Matt Severn 
Chairman of Standards Committee 
2015/ 

Page 49



May 2016 
Annual Report [Draft]  

4 

1. Introduction – Ethical Standards 
 

The Council has a duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by 
Members and co-opted members and the Council aims to have the highest possible 
ethical standards in place across the Council.  
 
This report is the fourth report on ethical standards following implementation of the 
Localism Act 2011, and considers ethical standards within South Lakeland for the 
year to May 2016.   
 

2. Code of Conduct 
 
The Council’s revised Code of Conduct was first approved by Council in June 2012.  
The Code was drafted in consultation with Councils across Cumbria.  The same 
Code was adopted by all principal authorities in Cumbria, and by the majority of 
Parish and Town Councils. 
 
In June 2013 the Committee undertook a review of the new arrangements, and 
recommended that no further changes be made to the Code at the present time other 
than the revision of the definitions for the seven general principles of public life as 
revised by the Committee on Standards in Public Life in their 14 report on “Standards 
Matter”.  
 
During 2014 the County Council undertook a review of the Code and made some 
changes, but the Districts and Parish/Town Councils retained the Code as originally 
adopted. 
 
As is custom and practice training has been offered on the Code to all District 
Members and Co-optees and to all Town and Parish Councils. The assistance of the 
Cumbrian Association of Local Councils continues to provide valuable support on 
considering issues around parish and town councils.  
 

3. Role of Standards Committee/Monitoring Officer/Independent Person/ Parish 
Representatives 

 
The Council must demonstrate that it operates high standards of ethical conduct in 
the way it carries out its dealings; this applies to both Members and Officers.  
 
The main function of the Standards Committee is to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct and it seeks to ensure that the District Council, and the Town/ 
Parish Councils which operate within the District, operate within the expected ethical 
standards of conduct expected from them.  
 
The Committee fulfills this role by promoting good standards of conduct and ensuring 
that training is available on standards of conduct. It also reviews ethical matters, such 
as the Code of Conduct and revisions to/ adoption of Protocols, governing the 
behavior of officers and elected Members.  
 
The Standards Committee is operating under its terms of reference as set out in the 
Council’s Constitution. It met on two occasions during this year.  In September 2015 
it undertook its annual review of the Parish and District Registers of Interest, and the 
Employees Register of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality. The Committee also 
received reports on code of conduct complaints, general complaints and compliments 
and the annual report of the Local Government Ombudsman. It also reviewed 
guidance for Members on Gifts and Hospitality and the Planning Protocol. 

Page 50



May 2016 
Annual Report [Draft]  

5 

 
Further information about these meetings, including agendas, reports considered and 
minutes are available on the Council’s website. 

 
Monitoring Officer 
 
Debbie Storr, the Director of Policy and Resources is the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
(MO) and is supported in her role by the Deputy Monitoring Officer, Matthew Neal, 
Solicitor to the Council. 
 
The role of MO is a statutory role and is required to ensure that the Council, its 
Members and officers carry out their functions in a proper and lawful manner and to 
ensure that high standards of conduct are promoted and maintained throughout the 
organisation. 
 
In particular, the MO is responsible for establishing and maintaining the register of 
District Councillors’ and Parish Councillors’ interests. She supports the Standards 
Committee and makes sure that the Council acts within the law and ensures the 
Council’s Constitution is effective. 
 
Independent Person 
 
The Council’s current Independent Person is David Tweddle who was appointed 
following advertisement in 2012, together with a second Independent Person who 
subsequently resigned due to other commitments. Since 2013 the Council has 
continued with just one Independent Person whose term of appointment will expire 
on 30 June 2016. The Committee considered the appointment at its meeting in April 
and recommendations are being made to continue the appointment for a further 
period. 
 
The role of the Independent Person was broadened in 2015 by the statutory revisions 
to the Officer Employment Procedure Rules which requires the Council to invite two 
independent persons to any panel dealing with disciplinary cases involving the Head 
of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer. To date there has been 
no requirement for such a panel and the Council can also call on Independent 
Persons from neighbouring authorities if needed.     
 
Parish Representatives 
 
The Committee is able to co-opt up to 2 parish co-optees.  As at May 2016 the 
Chairman of the South Lakeland Association of Local Councils and a second 
representative nominated by the South Lakeland Association of Local Councils are 
co-opted members of the Committee.  

Page 51



May 2016 
Annual Report [Draft]  

6 

 
 

4. Overview 
 

Following the changes brought in by the Localism Act 2011, the workload of the 
Committee reduced. It continues to ensure that the Council has a robust mechanism 
in place as well as reviewing the Code of Conduct and various Member/Officer 
protocols. In addition, there have been numerous training sessions made available to 
Councillors and co-optees as well as training for parishes across the District. This is 
often bespoke training on request by Parishes themselves through CALC. 
 
The Committee has also continued with a rolling work programme with the aim of 
keeping the ethical framework under review.  
 
Overall, the evidence suggests that ethical standards in the Authority are sound. The 
intention – of both Officers and the Standards Committee – must be (and indeed is) 
to provide a significant and positive contribution to overall corporate performance. 
 
Joint working continues with Cumbrian authorities and CALC to ensure consistency 
of approach on the code and practices. 
 
As the Committee work load has lessened, the number of Committee meetings has 
been reduced to two per year, and this seems to be working satisfactorily.  Further 
meetings can be called if and when required. 
 

5. Complaints against Members 
 

At the time of writing this report, the Monitoring Officer has received no new specific 
code of conduct complaints since May 2015.   
 

6. Registration of Interests 
 

The Members’ Register continues to be maintained and updated as and when 
Members notify changes. In addition, all Members are sent an annual reminder to 
update their entries and confirm the accuracy of the Register. The same applies to 
the Parish Councillors’ Register of Interests.  
 
All District Councillors’ interest forms are on the Council’s web page, as are all Parish 
and Town Councillor interests. Publication on the authority’s website and on the 
relevant Parish/Town Council’s website, where they have one, is a requirement 
under the Localism Act 2011. The Registers are also still available to view in hard 
copy. 
 
Agendas for all District Council meetings contain an item regarding the disclosure of 
interests at the meeting and advising that guidance can be sought, if necessary, from 
the Monitoring Officer prior to meetings. The Minutes of the various Council, Cabinet 
and Committee meetings show that interests are regularly declared by Members. 

Page 52



May 2016 
Annual Report [Draft]  

7 

 
 

7. Other Activity 
 

Monitoring Officer advice has been given to both individual Members and corporately 
as required. Opportunities have been sought and used to deliver proactive advice to 
Members to ensure high standards and avoid possible breaches of the Code. The 
Monitoring Officer, the Deputy Monitoring Officer and other Officers are available to 
advise Members at all reasonable times. 
 
 

9. Training 
 
Formal training sessions have been provided as requested for Parish/Town Clerks 
and their members, with whom liaison is maintained. The Monitoring Officer or 
Deputy have also visited Parish Councils when requested to discuss the Code and 
registers of interests.  
 
The District Council and Cumbria Association of Councils have continued to work 
closely together around the provision of training and information to parishes.  
 
Training on the Code of Conduct continues to form part of the Induction Training for 
new Elected Members to the District Council to give them an overview of the Code. 
For 2015 inductions two training sessions were offered to newly elected Councillors 
and co-optees and parish councillors and opened up as refresher training for others. 
All newly elected District Councillors have received this training.   
 
Training on Committees which have quasi-judicial roles e.g. Standards, Planning, 
Licensing and Appeals, is considered essential for Members serving on those 
Committees and is offered annually, either as a refresher or for new Committee 
Members as appropriate. 

 
10. Cumbria Group 

 
The Cumbria and Lancaster Monitoring Officers meet as required, and correspond 
regularly to discuss key issues.    
 

11.       Ombudsman Cases – April 2015  – March 2016 
.  
The Annual Review Letter from the Ombudsman is expected in July 2016.  
 
Only one case was upheld against the Council during the 12 month period 2015/16.  
 
 

12. Constitution of Standards Committee 
 

The membership and functions of the Standards Committee are in accordance with 
the constitution and relevant guidance as agreed by Council on 29 March 2012.  It 
currently has 2 Parish Members co-opted onto the Committee with non-voting rights, 
and 7 District Members.  
 
The Independent Person is able to attend and advise the Committee as required.  
 
Membership during 2015/16 was as follows: 
 

Page 53



May 2016 
Annual Report [Draft]  

8 

 
Parish Members 
David Peters (member of Natland Parish Council and Chairman of the South 
Lakeland Association of Local Councils) 
Peter Smilie (member of Arnside Parish Council) 
Vacancy 
 
Councillors  
John Clough 
John Holmes 
Eric Morrell (Vice-Chairman) 
Janette Jenkinson 
Matt Severn (Chairman) 
Ian Stewart 
Phil Walker 
 
  

13. Dispensations  
 

No formal requests for dispensation have been considered during 2015/16.  
 

14. Budget 
 

There is limited budget provision to assist in supporting any investigations and 
training with regard to standards issues. As no investigations were undertaken during 
2015/16, no spend was required for this. 
 

15. Future Activity 
 

Work Programme 
 
The Work Programme for 2016/2017 will include standing annual items but will be 
reviewed as necessary throughout the year to take account of any developing issues 
pertaining to standards.  

 

Page 54



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

19 April 2016 

Independent Person Appointment 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Matt Severn – Chairman of Standards Committee  

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources 

WARDS: All 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to consider the Independent Person appointment 
from July 2016. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Committee considers recommending to full Council that the 
appointment of the current Independent Person, David Tweddle is 
continued with effect from 1 July 2016 until 1 July 2020.  

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Localism Act 2011 introduced a new role of Independent Person to 
provide advice and guidance to the Monitoring Officer and Members who are 
the subject of a standards allegation. Following advertisement and full 
recruitment process it was agreed at a meeting of full Council on 19 June 
2012 that Mr Tweddle be appointed Independent Person for a period of 4 
years with effect from 1 July 2012, and that Mrs Pat Ford be appointed as the 
Reserve Independent Person. Mrs Ford resigned from the role in 2013 due to 
other commitments and following review by the Standards Committee the 
Council has continued with the one Independent Person.  

3.2 Following changes to the Officer Employment Procedure Rules from May 
2015 the Independent Person must be invited to be considered for 
appointment to any Panel which may be set up to deal with any disciplinary 
cases involving the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance 
Officer.  No such panel has been required to date. 

3.3 If additional support is required then the Council can also call upon 
Independent Persons from neighbouring authorities for this. 

3.4 Since his appointment Mr Tweddle has attended training, and been actively 
involved in standards, and assisted the Monitoring Officer in various matters, 
including local resolutions. As such he has gained substantial knowledge and 
experience in the role and it is recommended that Mr Tweddle’s appointment 

Page 55

Item No.11



 

 

be continued for a further 4 year period until 2020. Mr Tweddle has expressed 
an interest in continuing in the role. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Information from other Cumbrian authorities is that they have had significant 
difficulties in recruiting to the role of Independent Person.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 Not to continue the appointment and to go out to advertisement to recruit to 
the role of Independent person. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Good governance underpins the Council’s values priorities. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 The Council currently provides an allowance of £250 per annum plus 
travelling and subsistence for the appointment. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 No issues identified 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 The position of Independent Person is a statutory requirement through the 
Localism Act 2011, and the scope of the role has been extended as detailed 
in 3.2 above.  

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Not applicable. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Not applicable. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Challenge in terms of  
process 

Reputational Ensure decision making 
is open and transparent 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

 None 

 

Page 56



 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

 28.1.16 28.1.16 18.2.16 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 19.4.16 18.5.16  author 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Group 
Leaders 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

Use these 
boxes for 
additional 
tracking 

Use these 
boxes for 
additional 
tracking 

n/a 28.1,16 n/a   

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Standards Committee Work Programme - Updated April 2016 Page 1

Updated 10 September 2015

Topic Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17
Milestones/ 
Targets/Comments

1
Standards Committee Training for Members 
of Standards Committee

20 September 2016

2
Newly Elected District Councillors Induction 
Training

20 September 2016

3 Review of Website Details On Going during the year

4
Refresher Code of Conduct Training for 
District Councillors 

16 May 2016- Existing and 
Newly elected Councillors

5
Refresher Code of Conduct Training for 
Parish Councillors

16 May 2016 - Existing and 
Newly elected Councillors

6
Inspect Registers of Interests for District and 
Parish Councils

On agenda for 20 September 
2016

7
Review Register of Interests & Gifts & 
Hospitality for Employees

On agenda for 20 September 
2016

8
Consider and adjudicate Dispensation 
Requests

As required by date of next 
meeting

9

Conduct twice yearly review of Complaints 
handling and Ombudsman reports Complaints and Ombudsman 

report on agenda for 20 
September 2016

10

Review of officer  Protocols Reviewed in June 2013. Any 
refresh will be considered 
during the Constitutional 
review

11
Publicise Role and Work of Standards 
Committeee

Ongoing

12
Reports from the Monitoring Officer on 
Investigations

As required

13 Prepare Annual Report for Full Council 01 April 2017

14
Review Effectiveness of Standards 
Committee

01 April 2017

15

Continue to raise the profile of the 
Standards Committee with Parish and Town 
Councils

Parish/Town Councils written 
to as requested by Committee 
on 15 April 2014 - chair of 
CALC invited as co-optee

Updated 10 September 2015

P
age 59

Item
 N

o.12



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 60


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	6 CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS
	7 COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS RECEIVED DURING 2015/2016
	Standards Appendix 1 Complaints Master 2015-2016
	Standards Appendix 2 Complaints Master 2015-2016
	Standards Appendix 3 Complaints Master 2015-2016

	8 REVIEW OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME
	Review of General Public Participation Scheme - Appendix 1
	General Public Participation Scheme


	9 PLANNING CODE OF CONDUCT
	Planning Code of Conduct - Appendix 1

	10 STANDARDS ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16
	Annual Report 2015-16 - Appx 1

	11 INDEPENDENT PERSON APPOINTMENT
	12 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
	Sheet1


